

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ  
HALLA NA CATHRACH  
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL  
CITY HALL  
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., I SEOMRA NA COMHAIRLE, HALLA NA CATHRACH, CORCAIGH** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, CORK** for the transaction of the following business:-

**GNÁTHCHRUINNIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 9<sup>ú</sup> MEÁN FOMHAIR 2019**

**ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 9<sup>th</sup> SEPTEMBER 2019**

1. Votes of Sympathy.
2. Votes of Congratulations/Best Wishes.

3. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

4. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

To consider any items the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

5. **MINUTES**

To consider, and if so decided to approve as correct record and sign Minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held 8<sup>th</sup> July 2019.
- Special Meeting of An Chomhairle held 29<sup>th</sup> July 2019

6. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

7. **PART 8 PLANNING PROPOSALS, CORK DOCKLANDS TO CITY CENTRE ROAD NETWORK IMPROVEMENT SCHEME**

In accordance with the provisions of Section 179 (4) (a) of Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended), An Chomhairle to consider the proposed Cork Docklands to City Centre Road Network Improvement Scheme and the attached report of the Director of Infrastructure Development thereon, as required under Section 179 (3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended).

8. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 2<sup>nd</sup> SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 2<sup>nd</sup> September 2019.

8.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENT TO 31<sup>st</sup> JULY 2019**

J. Hallahan presented the Financial Statement to 31<sup>st</sup> July 2019.

**Decision of Group**

It was agreed to refer the Financial Statement to 31<sup>st</sup> July 2019 to An Chomhairle for consideration.

8.2 **REPORT ON MOTION**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services Corporate Affairs and International Relations, dated 29<sup>th</sup> August 2019, on the following motion referred to the Group by An Chomhairle:

‘That Cork City Council would appoint a disability officer who would be involved in all aspects of decision making in Cork City Council to make Cork a disability friendly city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/280)

**Decision of Group**

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, dated 29<sup>th</sup> August 2019, and to refer it to An Chomhairle for noting.

8.3. **MOTIONS**

8.3.1 **VIABILITY OF PLANNING APPLICATION**

‘That this Council seek a stay on a final decision being made by An Bord Pleanala in relation to the application (Ref: PL28.303247), pending a special meeting of its elected members to examine further information on the viability of what is being proposed, and if necessary alter policy.’

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. L. Bogue 19/297)

## **Decision of Group**

It was agreed that as the Office of Public Works are giving a presentation on the Lower Lee Flood Relief Scheme on 16<sup>th</sup> September 2019, and that a further information period is being advertised in relation to PL28.303247, that the verbal report of the Chief Executive is accepted and the above to be forwarded to An Chomhairle for noting.

### 9. **FINANCE AND ESTIMATES COMMITTEE – 2<sup>nd</sup> SEPTEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Finance and Estimates Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 2<sup>nd</sup> September 2019.

#### 9.1 **FINANCE RELATED REPORTS**

##### 9.1.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO END OF JULY 2019**

Members considered the Financial Statements to end of July 2019.

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to note the Financial Statements and refer to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 9.2 **PROPERTY DISPOSAL**

Members considered the report of the Chief Executive dated 29<sup>th</sup> August 2019 in relation to the following disposal:-

Disposal of freehold interest of an area of ground situated at Mahon Industrial Estate, Cork to PSE Kinsale Energy Limited, c/o Ronan Daly Jermyn Solicitors, NO. 2 Park Place, City Gate Park, Mahon Point, Cork, for the sum of €7,500.00 (plus VAT if applicable) together with costs in the sum of €1,500.00 plus VAT.

### **Decision of Committee**

It was agreed to note the report of the Chief Executive and recommend the disposal to An Chomhairle for approval.

#### 10. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

#### 11. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

12. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

13. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

14. **CHIEF EXECUTIVES MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive's monthly management report for June and July 2019.

15. **MOTIONS**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

16 **MOTIONS**

16.1 **DRAINAGE SYSTEM IN WHITETHORN**

'That Cork City Council request Irish Water to look at the drainage system in Whitethorn on the Douglas Road.'

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/107)

16.2 **DERELICT SITES POWERS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES**

'That Cork City Council again calls on government to introduce stronger derelict sites powers for local authorities, including multiplier, annual fines and compulsory acquisition (rather than purchase) capabilities if sites sit unused for a specific period. (Such a proposal was made to then Minister Phil Hogan and subsequently, without action).'

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 19/256)

16.3 **CAMPAIGN BY AMBULANCE PERSONNEL**

'That Cork City Council support the ongoing campaign, including strike action, by Ambulance personnel for recognition of their union of Choice, the National Ambulance Services Representative Association (NASRA). We believe the right to union recognition is an important democratic and workers right and call for Minister Simon Harris and the HSE to recognise NASRA and move to resolve this dispute.'

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/257)

16.4 **NEW BUS ROUTES**

‘That Cork City Council would please contact Bus Éireann and the NTA, to invite them into City Council to discuss new bus routes for Kilcully, extend the 221 bus service into Sallybrook, Glanmire and to reinstall the bus shelters back to Kearneys Cross, Sallybrook, Glanmire on health and safety grounds.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/266)

16.5 **ASD UNIT IN BALLINCOLLIG**

‘I request that Cork City Council write to the Minister of Education and Skills Joe McHugh TD to ascertain the Department’s position regarding the opening of an ASD unit in Ballincollig. Section 8 of the Education (Admission to Schools) Act 2018 came into effect on 3<sup>rd</sup> December 2018. This section provides the Minister for Education with the power to compel a school to make additional provision in respect of children with special educational needs i.e. open a special class or classes, where the National Council for Special Education (NCSE) has identified a need for such provision within an area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Kelleher 19/315)

16.6 **CORK MAIL CENTRE CLOSURE**

‘That Cork City Council demand the intervention of the government into the Cork mail centre closure with a view of maintaining services with a reprioritisation towards parcel delivery and with a view of retaining all jobs.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/317)

16.7 **VEHICLE CLAMPING ACT 2015**

‘That Cork City Council call upon the Government and the Oireachtas, in particular the Minister for Transport, Tourism and Sport, to amend the Vehicle Clamping Act 2015 so as to provide that the regulation of clamping in private car parks becomes a reserved function of the Local Authority in which the private car parks are located. The amendments to the Act should give each Local Authority the power to make bye-laws setting out the circumstances in which vehicles in private car parks within its Local Authority area may be clamped. The amendments to the Act should also give each Local Authority the power to make bye-laws banning the use of clamping in private car parks within its Local Authority area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/349)

16.8 **2019 BUS SERVICE**

‘That Cork City Council write to Bus Éireann requesting that an extra bus be put on the very successful 2019 bus service especially at school times in the morning and again at afternoon/evening times when the primary and secondary school children are using the service.’

This is an excellent service but the bus only runs on an hourly basis meaning primary and secondary children often can't use the service as they would be too early for school. Would Bus Éireann consider running an extra bus at these times?"

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 19/356)

16.9 **FUNDING FOR NORTH RING ROAD**

“That Cork City Council would seek an urgent meeting with the Taoiseach to request to have the funding put in place to immediately commence the process of the planning and construction of the complete Northern Ring Road connecting the Dunkettle Interchange, Glanmire, the northside of Cork City, Blarney, Tower and Ballincollig. This road is a vital piece of infrastructure for the whole of Cork and would ease the congestion on the South Link Road, as well as the Jack Lynch Tunnel and areas such as Wilton and Bishopstown”

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/382)

**CATHERINE KELLY**  
**MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR**

Chuig gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

5<sup>ú</sup> Meán Fomhair 2019

# **APPENDIX 1**

## **MOTIONS**

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **FOOTPATH ON DOUGLAS STREET**

‘That the footpath on Douglas St as you walk into town be reconstructed as it is in very poor condition (left hand side).’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/086)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

2. **FUNDING FOR ROADS**

‘That Cork City Council through the SPC on Roads seek a meeting with the minister and seek funding for, 1) estate road resurfacing, 2) funding for traffic calming, 3) additional public lights, 4) laneway closures, 5) green to parking programmes. All these programmes were of huge community value and help build connectivity between Council, Gardaí and community groups.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/087)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

3. **REFUGES FOR POLLINATING INSECTS**

‘That Cork City Council follow Clonmel’s example, by mapping itself and pinpoint areas that could act as refuges for pollinating insects to provide food and shelter. The city to work all industry sectors to highlight the issue and how Council businesses, home owners and schools could get involved. We can identify and protect notice flowering hedgerows and preserve existing pollinator friendly areas in park and Council land.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/098)

**Environment, Water & Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/09/19**

4. **YELLOW BOXES AT DUBLIN HILL**

‘That yellow boxes be painted outside Glenthorn, Thorndale, Marion Park, Hawthorne and Delaney Park, Millfield Cottages on Dublin Hill.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/191)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

5. **YELLOW BOXES AT LIOS RUA, BANDUFF ROAD**

‘That yellow boxes be installed about Lios Rua on the Banduff Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/192)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

6. **HILSTORIC PATHS AT THE NORTH CATHEDRAL**

‘That Cork City Council resurface the historic paths around the North Cathedral in particular Church Hill and Chapel Hill and surrounding areas restoring this important heritage to its former glory.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/197)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

7. **NEW FOOTPATHS IN KNOCKNAHEENY**

‘That Cork City Council repair or install new footpaths on Kilmore Road, Courtown Drive, and Harbour View Road for easy wheelchair access.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/203)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

8. **INCLUDE SAINT MARYS PLACE IN THE TRAFFIC CALMING PROGRAMME**

‘That Cork City Council include St. Mary’s Place in the traffic calming programme.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/204)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

9. **TRAFFIC INSPECTION AT BANDUFF AND RATHCOONEY**

‘That Cork City Council carry out a traffic inspection of the Fox and Hounds crossroads, in the Banduff and Rathcooney Area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/205)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**



10. **WELCOMING COMMUNITIES PROGRAMME**

‘That Cork City Council include Rathpeacon Community Association as part of the welcoming communities programme.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/230)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

11. **REINSTATE FOOTPATH JOINING RATHPEACON WITH THE CITY**

‘That Cork City Council re-instate the footpath joining Rathpeacon with the City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/231)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

12. **INCLUDE KENLEY ROAD IN THE FOOTPATH RESURFACING PROGRAMME**

‘That City Council would include Kenley Road in the next footpath resurfacing programme.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/241)

**South West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

13. **DOUBLE YELLOW LINES ON CURRAHEEN ROAD**

‘That City Council would extend the double yellow lines on the Curraheen Rd. at the junction with Curraheen Estate to facilitate the drivers exiting and give them more sight of traffic approaching. Also that the double yellow lines there presently be monitored by our traffic wardens as they are being abused presently which blocks the sight of drivers/residents exiting.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/242)

**South West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

14. **GREEN TO PARKING AREAS**

‘That the following areas be examined for green to parking areas in the next programme.

1. Market Gardens.
2. Arrigdeen Lawn.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/243)

**South West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

15. **LOW COST ACCIDENT SCHEMES**

‘That Cork City Council give me an update please on the Low Cost Accident Schemes to be carried out from Buck Leary Cross to Kearneys Cross, Sallybrook, Glanmire.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/264)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

16. **RESURFACING WORKS IN BALLINCROSSIG, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council give me an update please on the proposed resurfacing works to be carried out in Ballincrossig, Glanmire.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/265)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

17. **REINSTATEMENT OF ROADS IN BALLYPHEHANE AND TURNERS CROSS**

‘That Cork City Council ensures the proper reinstatement of roads in Ballyphehane/Turners Cross and other areas of the city following work to replace lead pipes by Irish Water and regular reports given to members about the company’s plans for same.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 19/314)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

18. **WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES**

‘That Cork City Council establish a committee that will report on what services and funding would be necessary to return waste collection services to the remit of the local authority.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/316)

**Corporate Policy Group – 02/09/19**

19. **TREE AT CONNOLLY ROAD**

‘That the tree outside no. 132 Connolly Road be cut back as it is leaning low into property.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Kerins 19/323)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

20. **SIGNAGE ON GURRANABRAHER ROAD AND BLARNEY ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council installs appropriate signage on Gurrabraher Road and Blarney Road to prevent HGVs using these unsuitable roads.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/325)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

21. **PARKING ON POPHAMS ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council improves the parking on Popham’s Road, Farranree outside the shops. The current parking arrangements are causing a lot of problems for the residents and general road users.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/326)

**North West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

22. **TRAFFIC SIGNAGE AROUND JOHN BARLEYCORN BRIDGE**

‘That Cork City Council install traffic signage on the main roads approaching the John Barleycorn Bridge to alert and prevent drivers of articulated vehicles from travelling over this bridge. Drivers of these vehicles are causing traffic chaos and damaging this historical bridge. The signage currently in place is not effective and not fit for purpose.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/327)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

23. **SPEED RAMP AT DEERMOUNT, DEERPARK**

‘That this Council install a speed ramp at the entrance to Deermount, Deerpark. There is a blind spot at the entrance to the estate and recently a child was knocked down at this spot.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Kerins 19/328)

**South Central Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**

24. **CUL DE SAC SIGN AT STOCKTON CLOSE**

‘I ask that the roads and transport department would erect a Cul De Sac sign at the entrance of Stockton Close, Amberley, Grange, Cork City. It has been brought to my attention that a lot of excess traffic traverse in and out of this quiet Cul De Sac believing that there is an entrance into Grange Heights which is the adjoining estate.’

(Proposer: Cllr. P. Dineen 19/335)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

25. **TRAFFIC CALMING ON BALLYHOOLY ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council would introduce traffic calming measures on Ballyhooly Road between St. Lukes Cross and Dillons Cross. High volumes of speeding traffic present a serious public safety hazard and this urgently needs to be addressed as soon as possible.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/336)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

26. **CUL DE SAC SIGN AT BELGRAVE AVENUE, WELLINGTON ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council replace the "missing" cul de sac sign at the entrance to Belgrave Avenue off Wellington Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/337)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

27. **CLEAN UP OF THE QUARRY, BALLYHOOLY ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council would undertake an intense clean up of the Quarry area off Ballyhooly Road as soon as possible.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/338)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

28. **STATUE TO KATHY BARRY**

‘That in conjunction with and celebration of the annual Coal Quay Festival, Cork City Council in co-operation with the organising committee erects a statue in memory of one of the great shawlies and Cork legends, Kathy Barry.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 19/339)

**Party Whips – 30/09/19**

29. **WEEDS ON LOWER GLANMIRE ROAD**

‘That Cork City Council remove the weeds currently growing out of control along the footpath adjacent to the river on Lower Glanmire Road out to the Skew Bridge.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/340)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

30. **ERECT COMMEMORATIVE STATUES ON PATRICK STREET**

‘That Cork City Council erect monuments and statues of Tomás Mac Curtain, Terence MacSwiney and Michael Collins on Patrick Street to commemorate the centenaries of their deaths on the 20<sup>th</sup> March 1920, the 25<sup>th</sup> October 1920 and the 22<sup>nd</sup> August 1922. The monuments and statues should be of a similar size and design as the monument and statue of Father Matthew, which is currently on Patrick Street.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/346)

**Party Whips – 30/09/19**

31. **MEMORIAL PLAQUE TO JOSIE AIREY**

‘That Cork City Council erect a memorial plaque to commemorate Josie Airey, whose courageous decision to bring the Irish Government to the European Court of Human Rights for breach of her Article 6 right to a “*fair and public hearing*” in judicial separation proceedings, led to the introduction of free legal aid in family law matters. The plaque should include details of Josie Airey’s life, her long struggle for and eventual success in ensuring an affordable way of accessing a legal separation and her wider contribution to marital law reform and women’s rights.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/347)

**Party Whips – 30/09/19**

32. **SECOND TRAFFIC LANE ON FRANKFIELD HILL**

‘That Cork City Council create a proper second traffic lane on Frankfield Hill down to the junction at the Kinsale Road roundabout by moving the footpath on the left-hand side over a few metres. A proper second lane of traffic would help the flow of traffic by enabling motorists to travel faster in both lanes. This, in turn, would have the knock-on effect of easing traffic congestion on the Grange Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/348)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

33. **EXERCISE EQUIPMENT AT THE LOUGH**

‘I propose that Cork City Council install adult exercise equipment, strategically around the Lough.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 19/352)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

34. **EXERCISE EQUIPMENT AT CLASHDUV PARK**

‘I propose that Cork City Council install adult exercise equipment strategically around Clashduv Park. Clashduv Park is an area used by a lot of walking groups, sports clubs and the general public. The placement of adult exercise equipment around Clashduv Park would be a great addition to the park.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 19/353)

**South West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

35. **RADAR SPEED SIGNS ON MARYBOROUGH HILL**

‘That the Council consider and report on the feasibility of radar speed signs on Maryborough Hill to assist safety of pedestrians and encourage motorists to slow down.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Forde 19/354)

**South East Local Area Committee – 24/09/19**

36. **INSTALL SWING GATES AT CLASHDUV PARK**

‘That Cork City Council install swing gates at Clashduv Park as a matter of safety. This park exits straight out onto a very busy main road which does cause a health and safety issue.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Moloney 19/355)

**South West Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

37. **UPGRADE OF MAYFIELD LIBRARY**

‘That the Frank O’Connor library, Mayfield would be upgraded and modernised, including the installation of proper signage in English and Irish marking the location of the library and highlighting the fact that it is named in honour of one of our greatest writers.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Tynan 19/357)

**North East Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

38. **COST RENTAL ACCOMMODATION**

‘That Cork City Council will actively promote the provision of cost rental accommodation as a primary form of housing provision.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. Oliver Moran, Cllr. L. Bogue 19/358)

**Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

39. **20 KILOMETER PER HOUR TRAFFIC ZONES AROUND PRIMARY SCHOOLS**

‘That this Council works towards instituting a policy of 20 kilometre per hour traffic zones within 250 of all primary schools in its administrative area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/359)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

40. **NO PARKING ZONES OUTSIDE SCHOOLS**

‘That this Council works towards instituting a policy of no parking zones outside any primary or secondary school in its administrative area, during school hours and within an academic year, to within no closer than 50 metres beyond the curtilage of such schools.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/360)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

41. **PARKLET ON DOUGLAS STREET**

‘That the recently constructed 'Parklet' on Douglas Street be retained as a permanent in situ feature.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/361)

**South Central Local Area Committee – 23/09/19**

42. **SEPTEMBER 20<sup>TH</sup> EARTH STRIKE**

‘Cork City Council recognises the importance of the September 20th Earth Strike and will facilitate staff who wish to participate in the protest.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/362)

**Corporate Policy Group – 07/10/19**

43. **PROJECTS FUNDED BY LOCAL PROPERTY TAX**

‘That Cork City Council will add public signs indicating projects that have been enabled, wholly funded or significantly part-funded by Local Property Tax receipts.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/363)

**Corporate Policy Group – 07/10/19**

44. **NEIGHBOURHOODS TO PARTICIPATE IN TRAFFIC CALMING INTERVENTIONS**

‘That Cork City Council will invite neighbourhoods to participate in a city-wide trial of Home Zones, DIY Streets and other innovative traffic-calming interventions and pedestrian-priority measures in residential areas. Benefits to road safety and community from reducing the danger and dominance of private motor vehicles in residential areas will be measured and case studies laid before Council.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/364)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

45. **SAFETY OF CYCLISTS ON SUMMERHILL AND BALLYHOOLY ROAD**

‘Notwithstanding future plans for the Ballyvolane to City Centre cycle route, Cork City Council will report on options that can be implemented immediately, including on a trial basis, for the safety and comfort of cyclists travelling uphill along Summer Hill and Ballyhooly Road between MacCurtain Street and Dillon's Cross, to include:

- Designating the left-hand footpath (travelling uphill) on Summer Hill as a shared cycle-pedestrian path
- Marking the uphill carriageway with the Cycle Symbol and the words "CYCLISTS MAY USE FULL LANE" or "PASS CYCLISTS USING OTHER LANE" (based on experience in New Zealand)
- Setting the speed limit of motor traffic along this route to 30km/h
- Other options, including a mixture of the above

The report shall consider the residential nature of these two streets and the needs of residents, particularly with regards to footpath use and a desire by residents to reduce traffic speed. The report shall also consider the current nature of the route, which is intimidating to cyclists, in particular female cyclists but also male cyclists, due to improper driving and overtaking by motorists, despite being the primary cycle route to access the North East of the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/365)

**North East Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**



46. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES THROUGH BALLINTEMPLE**

‘That the City Council place traffic calming measures through Ballintemple in particular exiting from Lower Beaumont Drive onto Blackrock Road as it has become a dangerous junction for local residents.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/366)

**South East Local Area Committee - 24/09/19**

47. **DOUGLAS COMMUNITY PARK**

‘That the one per cent art scheme connected with the Douglas Flood Defence Scheme be initiated and the funding put aside to attain proposals from interested artists for a work within Douglas Community Park.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/367)

**South East Local Area Committee - 24/09/19**

48. **LEE TO SEA GREENWAY**

‘That the Lee to Sea Greenway as proposed by the Cork Cycling Campaign and Cork City Council be progressed to its early planning stages.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/368)

**Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 16/09/19**

49. **1920-2020 COMMEMORATIVE PROGRAMME**

‘That the City Council’s 1920-2020 Commemorative programme be put together as a matter of urgency.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/369)

**Party Whips – 30/09/19**

50. **REPRESENTATION ON CORPORATE POLICY GROUP**

‘That Cork City Council would ensure that all parties and groups are represented on the Corporate Policy Group with Standing Orders amended if necessary, Party Whips should consider this motion.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/373)

**Party Whips – 30/09/19**

51. **ROAD CLOSURE AT MARINA ROAD**

“That the Marina Road, from Páirc Uí Chaíomh to the junction at Church Avenue be closed to cars on Sundays during daylight hours in order to provide a safe, pollution-free and accessible space for people with disabilities, the elderly and children to enjoy the outdoors and exercise, contributing to an active, sociable and healthy city”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/374)

**South East Local Area Committee - 24/09/19**

52. **NO DROP ZONES OUTSIDE SCHOOLS**

“Noting the results of the European Environmental Agency ‘Air Quality in Europe - 2018’ report that in Ireland, the number of premature deaths attributable to air pollution is estimated at 1,510 people and is mainly due to cardiovascular disease. Further noting that the WHO has described air pollution as the ‘single biggest environmental health risk’; Cork City Council will put in place ‘no drop zones’ (with the exception of blue badge holders) outside primary and secondary schools to protect children and young adults from the known health impacts of air pollution and to encourage alternative modes of transport where possible and alleviate traffic during school opening and closing times.”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/375)

**Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

53. **TRANSGENDER COMMUNITY**

“This Council recognizes the contribution that our Transgender Community makes to the city of Cork. However, Cork City Council notes that many within the Transgender Community still suffer discrimination and that visibility of the community is an important part of raising awareness and overcoming discrimination. As a statement of our solidarity with the Transgender Community, this council agrees to illuminate Cork City Hall in the colors of the Transgender Community’s flag and to fly this flag over Cork City Hall on March 31st to coincide with Transgender Day of Visibility.”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/376)

**Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 16/09/19**

54. **OVERGROWN TREES AT VICAR'S ROAD**

“That City Council would take a serious look at the state of ALL the overgrown trees on Vicar’s Road and a follow up report to all local Councillors.

The residents on the south side of this road are finding it hard to exit their properties out onto this road due to overhanging branches and the residents on the north side of this road are fearful of some of these huge trees falling on their properties”

(Proposer: H. Cremin 19/377)

**South West Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**

55. **PEDESTRIAN CROSSING AT KERRYPIKE**

“That Cork City Council would install a pedestrian crossing in Kerry Pike Village close to the entrance of Clogheen National School to provide a safe point for both local and school children to cross the road.”

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/378)

**North West Local Area Committee - 24/09/19**

56. **TRAFFIC CALMING AT CASTLEJANE ESTATE, GLANMIRE**

“That Cork City Council look at traffic calming measures at CastlejaneEstate, Glanmire. The road linking Church Hill and Barnavara Hill, goes right through the estate and many people use this as a “rat run” and we need to put traffic calming measures in place to reduce speeding in the estate. Pedestrian access at the Church Hill side needs attention as it leads to a school and currently has no footpath.”

(Proposer: J. Maher 19/379)

**North East Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**

57. **SIGNAGE AT MEELICK PARK, BALLYVOLANE**

“That Cork City Council erect children at play signs and 30km speed signs at Meelick Park, Ballyvolane. This park is the entrance to a Cork City public park, Kempton Park and to Leeds United A.F.C where large amounts of cars travel on a daily basis.”

(Proposer: J. Maher 19/380)

**North East Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**

58. **PEDESTRIAN CROSSING AT MEADOW PARK**

“That Cork City Council look at a pedestrian crossing linking Meadow Park and the Ballyvolane Shopping Centre “

(Proposer: J. Maher 19/381)

**North East Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**

59. **CONSTRUCTION OF SOCIAL AND AFFORDABLE HOUSES**

“That Cork City Council would employ direct labour to commence the construction of social and affordable houses to tackle the worsening housing and homeless crisis in Cork.”

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/383)

**Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 21/10/19**

60. **CUL DE SAC SIGNS AT BEECH TREE AVENUE**

“That Cork City Council would erect Cul de Sac signs at the entrance to Beech Tree Avenue on Shanakiel Road and at the entrance to Mile Stream on Blarney Road to inform motorists and for the safety of the residents especially the children living in the area.”

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/384)

**North West Local Area Committee - 23/09/19**